
 
CONFERENCE CALL LINE: (301) 715-8592 MEETING ID: 898 1666 4155 PASSCODE: 2449  

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/89816664155?pwd=RkNKeTM0T1YvWDA3Q2U3QmIwMytGdz09 

  
1. Administrative Session (8:15) (The items discussed during Administrative Session are intended to

have staff present updates/reports or routine items to the Board. The Second Wednesday of the
month is an Elected Official/Department Director Meeting)

   
 1.1 Board of Commissioners & Madras City Council Joint Meeting at City Hall beginning at 8:00

a.m.
 1.1.pdf
  
2. Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance/Invocation
  
3. Presentations/Awards
  
4. Changes to the Agenda (Consideration of Submission of Late Items)
   
 4.1 Corrected Letter to Oregon Water Resources Department and Operations and Oregon Office

of Emergency Management regarding Jefferson County Drought - signed by Commission. 
 4.1.pdf
   
 4.2 Corrected Resolution In the Matter of Declaring a Local Disaster and Requesting a State of

Drought Emergency Declaration for Jefferson County, Oregon - signed by Commission.

AGENDA
JEFFERSON COUNTY

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING
APRIL 3, 2024 

COMMISSION MEETING ROOM
8:15 AM 

This meeting has the option of attending via teleconference.  The meeting is open for onsite
attendees.  The teleconference allows for listening to the meeting, but will be muted for incoming
participation, except during “citizen comments” that will occur at approximately 9:00am.   

Pursuant to ORS 192.640, this agenda includes a list of the principal subjects anticipated to be
considered at the above referenced meeting; however, the agenda does not limit the ability of the
County Commission to consider additional subjects. Meetings are subject to cancellation without
notice. Other than hearings, which are publicly noticed, the time schedule is approximate and may vary
for individual agenda items. The Board reserves the right to place a time limit on public testimony on
any agenda item. The meeting place is handicapped accessible. Those needing assistance should contact
the Commission office two (2) days in advance of the meeting by calling (541) 475-2449.

All agenda items shall be taken up between scheduled (time specific) appointments,
action items, or public hearings when time permits.

1

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/89816664155?pwd=RkNKeTM0T1YvWDA3Q2U3QmIwMytGdz09
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2533143/1.1.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2537975/4.1.pdf


 4.2.pdf
  
5. 9:00 A.M. - Citizen Comments
  
6. Consent Agenda (The items on the Consent Agenda are considered routine and will all be adopted

in one motion unless a Board member or person in the audience requests, before the vote on the
motion, to have the item considered separately. If any item is removed from the Consent Agenda,
the item will be taken up immediately following the vote on the remaining items)

   
 6.1 March 2024 Accounts Payable Paid March 2024 in the amount of $690.02 - signed by

Commission. 
 6.1.pdf
   
 6.2 March 2024 Accounts Payable Paid March 2024 in the amount of $86,573.36 - signed by

Commission.
 6.2.pdf
   
 6.3 Certificate of Right to Burial, Certificate No. 2097 - signed by Commission. 
 6.3.pdf
   
 6.4 Action Minutes for March 13 & 27, 2024 - signed by Commission. 
 6.4.pdf
  
7. Scheduled Appointments, Action Items, and Public Hearings
   
 7.1 9:45 a.m. - Chamber of Commerce Updates. 
   
 7.2 10:00 a.m. - Jefferson County Soil & Water Conservation District Update. 
   
 7.3 10:45 a.m. - Executive Session - ORS 192.660(2)(d) - Labor Negotiator Consultations. 
  
8. Action Items
   
 8.1 Salary Change Order for Charles Hatcher - signed by Commission. 
 8.1.pdf
   
 8.2 Salary Change Order for Brandon Talbott - signed by Commission. 
 8.2.pdf
   
 8.3 Salary Change Order for Joshua Capehart - signed by Commission. 
 8.3.pdf
   
 8.4 Salary Order for Michael Beeler, Community Corrections Work Crew Coordinator, Grade

16, Step 15 - signed by Commission. 
 8.4.pdf
   
 8.5 Public Transportation Division Oregon Department of Transportation, Agreement No. 35651

- signed by Commission. 
 8.5.pdf
   
 8.6 Jefferson County Special Transportation Fund Services Contract, Amendment 2 - signed by

2

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2537976/4.2.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2533192/6.1.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2533193/6.2.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2533194/6.3.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2533195/6.4.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2533196/8.1.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2533197/8.2.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2533198/8.3.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2533199/8.4.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2533200/8.5.pdf


Commission. 
 8.6.pdf
   
 8.7 Zoom Video Communications In. Annual Invoice for $1,759.20 - approved by Commission. 
 8.7.pdf
   
 8.8 Salary Order for Theresacam Nguyen, Public Health Healthy Communities Specialist, Grade

18, Step 14 - signed by Commission. 
 8.8.pdf
   
 8.9 Authorization for Attendance and Trainings for Michael Baker to the National Rural Health

Association Health Equity Annual Conference, May 6-10, 2024 in New Orleans, LA - signed
by Commission Chair. 

 8.9.pdf
  
9. Elected Official Report(s)/Request(s)
  
10. Department Heads Report(s)/Request(s)
   
 10.1 Public Health Job Descriptions. 
  
11. County Counsel Report(s)/Request(s)
  
12. County Administrative Officer Report(s)/Request(s)
  
13. Commission Discussion Items
  
14. Announcements/Notification of additional Commission Meetings
  
15. Executive Session
   
 15.1 10:45 a.m. - Executive Session - ORS 192.660(2)(d) - Labor Negotiator Consolations. 
  
16. Adjourn

3

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2535028/8.6.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2535027/8.7.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2535024/8.8.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2535034/8.9.pdf


Page 1 of 1 Madras City Council – Jefferson County Commission Meeting April 3, 2024 

 

MADRAS CITY COUNCIL – JEFFERSON COUNTY COMMISSION MEETING 

 

Wednesday, April 3, 2024, 8:00 a.m. 

City Hall, 125 SW “E” Street, Madras, OR 97741 

Telephone (541) 475-2449    www.jeffco.net 

This meeting is open to the public. This agenda includes a list of the principal subjects anticipated to be considered at 

the meeting. However, the agenda does not limit the ability of the Commission/Council to consider additional subjects. 

Meetings may be canceled without notice. 

Join via Zoom: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/2912614668?pwd=MIJ3ZzhOYzg0ZkhwOTZ0REgrWTFYdz09  

Passcode:5414752344 

Join via teleconference: 

From a cell phone: 971-247-1195 

From a land line phone: 1-877-853-5257 

Meeting ID:  291 261 4668# 

Participant ID: # 

Passcode: 541 475 2344# 

AGENDA 

I. Call Joint Meeting to Order 

II. Roll Call 

III. Changes/Additions to Regular Agenda 

IV. Consent Agenda 

1. Approval of February 7, 2024 Joint City Council-County Commission Meeting Minutes 

VI. Regular Agenda 

1. EDCO Semi-Annual Update.  

2. Potential Boundary Line Adjustment between City and County. 
3. Incidents/Crimes near Community Center, Fishpond & Trails.  

VI. Additional Discussion 

VII. Adjourn Joint Meeting 

4

http://www.jeffco.net/
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/2912614668?pwd=MIJ3ZzhOYzg0ZkhwOTZ0REgrWTFYdz09


   
 
 
 
  

 
Page 1 of 2 City Council – County Commission Joint Meeting Minutes February 7, 2024   
   

OFFICIAL CITY COUNCIL - COUNTY COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 
February 7, 2024 

I. Call to Order  

The meeting was called to order by Commissioner Fording at 8:06 a.m. on Wednesday, 
February 7, 2024 in the Jefferson County Commissioner’s Conference Room, 66 SE D Street 
in Madras, Oregon.  

 
Madras City Council Members In Attendance:  Councilors Gary Walker, Lamar Yoder, 
Gabriel Soliz, Jennifer Townsend, and Mike Seibold. 

City of Madras Staff Members In Attendance:  City Administrator Will Ibershof and 
Community Development Director Nick Snead. 

 
Jefferson County Commissioners In Attendance:  Commissioners Wayne Fording; Kelly 
Simmelink; and Mark Wunsch. 

Jefferson County Staff Members In Attendance:  County Administrative Officer Jeff 
Rasmussen; County Counsel Alexa Gassner; Public Health Director Michael Baker; Sheriff 
Jason Pollock; Emergency Management Coordinator Bryan Skidgel; Buildings & Grounds 
Director Tony Anderson; and County Recorder Lyndsay Hessel.  

Visitors in Attendance:  Debbie Taylor. 

II. Changes to Meeting Agenda (Consideration of Items Submitted Just Prior to Meeting) 

None. 

III. Consent Agenda 

All matters listed within the Consent Agenda have been distributed to each member of the Madras City 
Council and County Commission for reading and study, are considered to be routine, and will be 
enacted by one motion of the Council - County Commission with no separate discussions. If separate 
discussion is desired, that item may be removed from the Consent Agenda and placed on the Regular 
Agenda by request. 

A. Approval of Minutes from December 6, 2023 City Council-County Commission Meeting 

A MOTION WAS MADE BY COUNCILOR WALKER AND SECONDED BY COUNCILOR 
SEIBOLD TO APPROVE THE CONSENT AGENDA.  
A MOTION WAS MADE BY COMMISSIONER WUNSCH  
AND SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER SIMMELINK TO APPROVE THE CONSENT 
AGENDA. THE MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 

5



 
Page 2 of 2 City Council – County Commission Joint Meeting Minutes February 7, 2024   

I. City & County Joint Meeting Location Discussion. 

Meeting schedule was discussed and decided to alternate locations on an annual basis 
beginning with City Hall for 2024.   

II. EDCO Position Joint Funding Discussion.  

Round table discussion was had.  

III. Additional Discussion. 

IV. Adjourn 

The meeting was adjourned at 8:47 am. 
 
 

Minutes prepared and submitted by: 
 

 
________________________________________ 
Lyndsay Hessel, County Recorder 

6



Mark Wunsch, Commissioner               •               Wayne Fording, Chair              •               Kelly Simmelink, Commissioner 

 
 

 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
66 S.E. “D” St., Suite A  ⚫  Madras, Oregon 97741 ⚫  Ph: (541) 475-2449 ⚫  FAX: (541) 475-4454 
 

 
 

 

April 3, 2024 

 

Ryan Andrews 

Oregon Water Resources Department  

Co-Chair, Oregon Drought Readiness Council  

725 Summer Street NE, Suite A  

Salem, OR 97301  

Via Email: ryan.m.andrew@state.or.us   

  

Traci Naile 

Operations and Preparedness Manager 

Office of Emergency Management  

Co-Chair, Oregon Drought Readiness Council  

P.O. Box 14370  

Salem, OR 97301  

Via Email: traci.naile@state.or.us   

  

 

RE: Jefferson County Drought  

  

  

Mr. Andrews and Ms. Naile: 

  

Jefferson County, by and through its County Elected Officials, requests that the Governor of Oregon 

issue an executive order for all of Jefferson County under the provisions of ORS 536 as a direct result 

of severe and devastating drought conditions.  

  

There is the potential for the Jefferson County agricultural and livestock, natural resources, 

recreational, tourism, and related economies to experience widespread and severe damage resulting 

from extreme weather conditions within the county.  North Unit Irrigation District supports moving 

forward with a drought declaration as well.    

  

The county has already formally declared a drought and has attached a copy of the adopted resolution 

for your reference.   

  

The Jefferson County Board of Commissioners has determined that additional action by and support 

from the state is needed. This may include assistance from the Oregon Water Resources Department 

and other Oregon executive branch agencies, operating within their statutory authorities.  

  

Est. 1914 

7



Mark Wunsch, Commissioner               •               Wayne Fording, Chair              •               Kelly Simmelink, Commissioner 

Jefferson County Board of Commissioners therefore requests an executive order from the Governor, 

declaring drought in Jefferson County.  

  

We extend in advance our appreciation for your consideration on this matter. 

 

 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Wayne Fording, Chairman 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Mark Wunsch, Commissioner 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Kelly Simmelink, Commissioner 

8



BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS FOR THE STATE OF OREGON 

FOR THE COUNTY OF JEFFERSON 

 

IN THE MATTER OF DECLARING A ) 

LOCAL DISASTER AND REQUESTING ) 

A STATE OF DROUGHT EMERGENCY ) RESOLUTION NO.________________ 

DECLARATION FOR JEFFERSON  ) 

COUNTY, OREGON    ) 

 

WHEREAS, the Jefferson County Board of Commissioners finds that the Jefferson County 

agricultural and livestock industries, and related economy are suffering widespread and severe 

economic damage, potential injuries and loss of property resulting from extreme weather 

conditions within the county; and 

 

WHEREAS, annual water supplies available for irrigators and ranchers within Jefferson County 

are a function of both available water storage in the Willow Creek and Trout Creek resources and 

the estimated seasonal inflow from winter snow pack. 

 

• Wickiup Reservoir on March 26, 2024, is at 152,504 AF which is below the 186.995 AF 

historical average for this same time. 

• The current U.S. drought monitor had most of Jefferson County mapped at Abnormally 

Dry to Moderate drought status. 

• The seasonal outlook (April through June) for Jefferson County indicates that below 

precipitation is likely. 

• Many areas of Jefferson County received less than average precipitation. 

• North Unit Irrigation District began diverting stored water on the first day of the 

irrigation season. 

• Natural flows and reservoir supplies are at or near all-time lows and both irrigation 

districts with deliveries in Jefferson County (NUID/TSID) will experience shortages and 

or shut offs this year. 

WHEREAS, as a result of the available water storage and the estimated seasonal inflow, 

Jefferson County’s irrigated ground from stored water will receive reduced supply and reduced 

allocations; and 

WHEREAS, the extended weather forecast for Jefferson County projects higher than normal 

temperatures, and below average precipitation; and 

WHEREAS, the above conditions will result in loss of economic stability, pasture shortages, 

decreased feed production, shortened growing season, and decreased water supplies for Jefferson 

County agricultural and livestock producers.  In addition, this multi-year cumulative drought has 

resulted in decreased fuel moisture and early onset fire danger; and 

9



WHEREAS, the Jefferson County Board of Commissioner determines that extraordinary 

measures must be taken to alleviate suffering of people and livestock and to protect or mitigate 

economic loss, and to be responsive to the threat of wildfires. 

NOW THEREFORE the Jefferson County Board of Commissioners HEREBY PROCLAIMS: 

1. A local disaster is declared within Jefferson County. 

2. The Jefferson County Drought Emergency Management Plan has been implemented. 

3. Pursuant to ORS 401.165, we find that the appropriate response is beyond the capability 

of Jefferson County.  We are declaring a state of emergency for the purpose of 

assessment, evaluation and acquiring the ability to provide appropriate available 

resources. 

4. The Honorable Tina Kotek, Governor of Oregon, is requested to declare a Drought 

Emergency for all of Jefferson County under the provision of ORS 536 due to severe and 

continuing drought conditions beginning at this time and continuing for an unknown 

period of time; and direct the Oregon Department of Water Resources to make available 

in Jefferson County: Temporary Transfers of Water Rights, and Emergency Water Use 

Permits, and Use of Existing Right Option/Agreement; and other federal and state 

drought assistance and programs as needed. 

5. This proclamation shall take effect immediately from and after its issuance. 

 

DATED this _____day of ____________, 2024. 

 

 

     JEFFERSON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 

 

     ____________________________________ 

     Wayne Fording, Commission Chair 

 

 

     _____________________________________ 

     Kelly Simmelink, Commissioner 

 

 

     _____________________________________ 

     Mark Wunsch, Commissioner 

10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



Page 1 – STATEWIDE TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT FUND SERVICES CONTRACT AMENDMENT 2 
  

 
AMENDMENT 2 

Jefferson County Special Transportation Fund Services Contract 
 
This Second Amendment to the July l, 2021 Special Transportation Fund Services 
Contract between Jefferson County, a political subdivision of the State of Oregon 
("County") and Central Oregon Intergovernmental Council ("Contractor"), is 
amended, effective upon signing of all parties, as set forth below. Except as 
provided herein, all other provisions of the contract remain the same and in full 
force. 

 
RECITALS: 

 
WHEREAS, on or about March 28th, 2024, the County was awarded Rural Veterans 
Healthcare Transportation (RVHT) funding under Oregon Department of 
Transportation (ODOT) Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) #35651; and 

 
WHEREAS, COIC operates Cascade East Transit (CET), a regional public transit 
service provider throughout the Central Oregon region; and 

 
WHEREAS, IGA #35651 permits the County to subcontract its obligations 
subject to the requirements of Section 2 of IGA #35651; and 

 
WHEREAS, County wishes to subcontract, and COIC wishes to be subcontracted, 
to perform the obligations of IGA #35651 as described herein. 

 
Signatory's Warranty: 
Each party warrants to each other party that they are fully authorized and competent 
to enter into this Amendment to the Special Transportation Fund Services Contract 
between the County and Contractor in the capacity indicated by their signature and 
agrees to be bound by this amended Agreement. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

49



Page 2 – STATEWIDE TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT FUND SERVICES CONTRACT AMENDMENT 2 
  

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Contractor and County have executed this Amendment. 
 
CONTRACTOR 
 
COIC 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Signature 
 
 
____________________________________                 
Tammy Baney 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Executive Director 
 
 
____________________________________
                                                                     
Date      
     

COUNTY 
 
Jefferson Board of County Commissioners 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Mark Wunsch, County Commissioner 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Wayne Fording, County Commissioner 
 
 
____________________________________
Kelly Simmelink, County Commissioner 
 
 
____________________________________ 
 
Date

50



Page 2- SPECIAL TRANSPORTATION FUND SERVICES CONTRACT AMENDMENT  

 

 

51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63


	Board of Commissioner's Meeting Agenda
	Item 1.1 - 1.1.pdf
	Item 4.1 - 4.1.pdf
	Item 4.2 - 4.2.pdf
	Item 6.1 - 6.1.pdf
	Item 6.2 - 6.2.pdf
	Item 6.3 - 6.3.pdf
	Item 6.4 - 6.4.pdf
	Item 8.1 - 8.1.pdf
	Item 8.2 - 8.2.pdf
	Item 8.3 - 8.3.pdf
	Item 8.4 - 8.4.pdf
	Item 8.5 - 8.5.pdf
	Item 8.6 - 8.6.pdf
	Item 8.7 - 8.7.pdf
	Item 8.8 - 8.8.pdf
	Item 8.9 - 8.9.pdf

